UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Equa Employment Opportunity Civ. Fle No. 00-2229 (PAM/JGL)
Commisson,

Hantff,
V. MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

United Parcd Sarvicg, Inc,,

Defendant.

Thismétter is before the Court on Defendant’s Mation to Dismiss pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(b)(6). For the following reasons, the Court denies Defendant’s Mation.

BACKGROUND

Rantiff Equa Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) brought thislawsLit on bendf of
Mark Dugger and adassof amilarly stuated employeesof Defendant United Parcd Sarvice, Inc. (“UPS').
The Complaint dleges thet UPS engaged in unlavful employment practices in violation of section 703 of
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2(a)(1), by providing a hedlth benefit plan
that discriminates againd its employees because of their sex.

Mark Dugger, a UPS employee, was denied coverage for his wife's prescription for an ord
contraceptive (Ortho-Novum 7/7/7). Mrs. Dugger was prescribed this medicine not for contraceptive
purposes, but to treet apainful and at timesincapaditating femaehormond disorder. (Compl. 18) UPS's
heathbenefit plan (“thePlan™) exdudescoverageof ord contraceptivesfor dl purposes, induding trestment
of fende hormond disorders. 1d. The EEOC dleges thet UPS's Plan does not exdude medicaly

goproved prescription treetments for mae hormond disorders. 1d.



Mr. Dugger filed an employment discrimination charge with the EEOC dleging thet UPS sactions
violated Title VII. (Compl. 116.) The EEOC then brought this suit on behdf of Mr. Dugger and adass
of UPSemployees The Complaint dlegesthat: (1) UPSintentiondly violated section 703 of Title VI, 42
U.S.C. 82000e-2, by excuding medicaly approved prescri ptiontrestmentsfor femaehormond disorders,
while nat exduding any gpproved prescription trestmentsfor mae hormond disorders (Compl. ¥ 7, 10);
and (2) UPS s Rlan discriminates againgt and has adigparateimpact on fema e employess and spouses of
made employess. (Compl. 117.)! UPSaguestha the EEOC cannot make out adisparate trestment dam
because the exdusion of ord contraceptives is gender neutrd. UPS further contends that dependent
coverage negates any daimed digoarate impect.

DISCUSSI ON
For purposes of UPS sMation to Dismiss, the Court takes dl facts as dleged inthe Complaint as

true. Westcott v. City of Omaha, 901 F.2d 1486, 1488 (8th Cir. 1990). The Court mugt condrue the

dlegations in the Complaint and dl reasonable inferences arisng from the Complaint favorably to the

EEOC. Morton v. Becker, 793 F.2d 185, 187 (8th Cir. 1986). A mationto dismisswill only begranted

if “it gopears beyond doulat that plaintiff can prove no st of facts which would entitte him to rdief.”  1d.;

! The Complaint does not dlege that the Plan violates the Pregnancy Discrimination Act (“PDA”).
See 42 U.S.C. 8§ 2000&(k). The PDA prohibits employment practices that discriminate on the basis of
“pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions” 1d. At the hearing on this matter, counsd for the
EEOC argued that the excluson at issue violates the PDA. Because this clam was not dleged in the
Complant, it is not properly before the Court. Thus, the EEOC’ s request to supplement the record to
indude information relaing to a possible violation of the PDA is denied. Even if the EEOC amends its
Complaint to state such aclam, however, the Court has serious doubts about the merits of a PDA claim
in this context. The Eighth Circuit has made clear that prevention of conception isouts de the scope of the
PDA. Kraue v. lowaMethodist Med. Ctr., 95 F.3d 674, 679-80 (8th Cir. 1996).
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see dso Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46 (1957).

A. Section 703 of Title VII

The EEOC contends that UPS violated 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2 by providing a hedth bendfit plan
that discriminates againg its employees because of thar sex.  According to UPS, however, EEOC's
dlegation thet the Plan is discriminatory fails because the palicy exdusion is gender neutrd.

Section 703(a) of Title VII mekesiit “an unlawful employment practice for an employer . . . to
disriminate againg any individua with respect to his compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment, because of such individud’s race, color, reigion, sex or nation origin....” 42U.SC. 8§
2000e-2(8)(1). “Hedth insurance and other fringe benefits are ‘compensation, terms, condiitions, or

privilegesof employment.”” Newport News Shipbuilding & Dry Dock Co. v. EEOC, 462 U.S. 669, 682

(1983). Employee sfringe benefitsind ude those received from the coverage of adependent spouse. See

Kraud v. lowaMethodis Med. Cir., 915 F. Supp. 102, 114 (SD. lowa1995). Therefore, in determining

if discrimination exigts in the insurance plan, the Court should consder bath the benefits provided to the
employee as well as the benefits provided to the employes's dependents. See id. & 115; see dso
Newport, 462 U.S. at 682-83.

1 Digpaae Treament

According to the EEOC, UPS discriminates againg fema e employees by refusing to providethem
with coverage for hormond trestments while providing coverage to mae employees for hormona
trestments. Furthermore, the EEOC assartsthat UPS discriminates againg ma e employees because UPS
falsto providethe spouses of maeemployeeswith the same coveragethat it providesto spousesof femde

employess.



Inadisparate treetment dam, “[tlhe employer . . . treats Some people less favorably then others

because of therr . . . sex.” Int'1 Bhd. of Teamdersv. United States, 431 U.S. 324, 335n.15 (1977). An

employer’ sligbility in anintentiond discrimination daim “depends on whether protected trait . . . actudly

moativated the employer' sdecison.”  Kraud v. lowa Methodig Med. Cir., 95 F.3d 674, 680 (8th Cir.

1996) (quoting Hazen Paper Co. v. Biggins, 507 U.S. 604, 610 (1993)). Whileproof of adisiminatory

mativeisaritica, in some cases such mative can beinferred from the differencesin trestment. SeeKraud,
915 F. Supp. at 111.

UPS assatstha the exdusion is gender neutrd, because neither femade employees nor spouses
of mae employees are covered for ord contraceptives under the Plan.  UPS further contends that,
according to Kraud, gender neutrd exdusons such as fertility trestments do not condiitute sex
discriminationunder Title V1. Kraud, however, hdd that fertility trestments, which can be used by bath
men and women, are not asex-basad classfication. 95 F.3d at 681. Here, the EEOC contendsthet ordl
contraceptives are prestribed only to women. Thus, while UPS sPlan exdusion gppliesto bothmdeand
femde employess, it only burdensfemdesand, according to the EEOC salegetions, isnot gender neutrdl.

UPS's reliance on  Saks v. Franklin Covey Co., 117 F. Supp.2d 318 (SD.N.Y. 2000) is

misplaced. In Saks, the court held that “[d)s long as both men and women recave the same benedfitsand
are ubject to the same exdusions under an employer’ sinsurance palicy, the policy does not discriminete
onthebassof sex.” |Id. at 328. Taking the facts dleged in the EEOC's Complaint astrue, UPS s Flan
does nat provide the same benefits and exdusions to mae and femde employees and ther dependent

soousss. The Plan exdudes ord contraceptives for any reason, induding trestment for femde hormond



disorders, whilemedicaly necessary treatmentsfor maehormond disordersarenat exduded.? TheCourt
finds thet the Complant sufficiently dleges an intentiond diparate trestment daim againgt UPS,

2. Disparate Impact

The EEOC ds0 argues that UPS's exdusion of coverage for prescription contraceptives has a
digoarateimpact on femdesbecause of their sex. According to UPS, however, no disparateimpact dam
exigs because both mae and femde employees are equaly affected by the exdusion.

Title VII prohibits employers from engaging in employment practices that are fadidly neutrd but

arediscriminatory in operation. See Kraud, 95 F.3d a 681(quoting Connecticut v. Tedl, 457 U.S. 440,
446 (1982)). To edablish aprimafacie case of digparate impact, a plantiff must show that an employer
usss “employment practices thet are faddly neutrd inthar trestment of different groupsbut thet infact fal
more harshly on onegroup than ancther without judtification.” Kraud, 95 F.3d at 681 (quoting Houghton

v. SIPCO, Inc., 38 F.3d 953, 958 (8th Cir. 1994)).

The EEOC arguestha even if the Flan' s ord contraceptives exdusion is gender neutrd, it is il
unlanful becauseit has adigparate impect on women. UPS contendsthet dependent coverage offered by
the Flan negates such a dam because both femde employees and spouses of mde employees are not
covered under the Plan’ sexdusion of ord contraceptives. According to the EEOC, because only femdes

canbepresribed theord contraceptivesat issue, the atherwisefaddly neutrd exdusonfdlsmoreharshly

2 Because only the facts dleged in the Complaint are considered in ruling on a 12(b)(6) motion,
UPS' s contentions that the plan a so excludes medicaly gpproved treatment for male hormond disorders,
such as Viagra and Propecia, are of no moment.  See Morton, 793 F.2d at 187. However, even if the
Court consdered UPS sdllegations, theexclusonsfor Viagraand Propeciaare not relevant becausethose
drugs are non-medically necessary and elective treatments, and are unlike the oral contraceptives
prescribed to Mrs. Dugger as a medicaly necessary treatment for a serious hormona disorder.
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on both fema e empl oyees and gpouses of mae employees than on mae employess and pouses of femde
employess  Taking these dlegations as true, the EEOC has suffidently pled a digparate impact dam.
CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, and upon dl of the files, records, and proceedings herain, the Court
denies Defendant’ sMation to Dismiss. For the purposes of Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), the dlegaionsin
Rantiff’s Complaint suffidently state daims under Title V1.

Accordingly, IT ISHEREBY ORDERED tha:

1. Defendant’ s Mation to Digmiss (Clerk Doc. No. 4) isDENIED; ad

2. Fantff's Request for Leave to Fle Supplementd Authority (Clerk Doc. No. 16) is

DENIED.

Daed: April 14, 2001

Paul A. Magnuson
United States Didtrict Court Judge



